



2021/2022學年 秋季入學

POSTGRADUATE NEW STUDENT HANDBOOK

非本地新生適用 For Non-local New Students



Contents

WELCOME MESSAGE	2
IMPORTANT DATES	
ADMISSION AND REGISTRATION PROCEDURES	4
I. CONFIRM ADMISSION	5
1.1 Admission result	5
1.2 ACCEPTANCE DOCUMENTS	5
1.3 CONFIRM ADMISSION	5
1.4 FILL IN CORRESPONDENCE	б
1.5 TUITION AND DORMITORY FEES	6
1.6 UPLOAD PAYMENT PROOF	7
II. SERVICES FOR NEW STUDENTS	
2.1 Dormitory	
2.2 Order textbooks	9
2.3 STUDENT GROUP INSURANCE	
III. PREPARE REGISTRATION	
3.1 STUDENT VISA	11
3.2 PREPARE REGISTRATION DOCUMENTS	
IV. REGISTRATION	
4.1 Online Registration	
4.2 MAKE APPOINTMENT AND COMPLETE HEALTH EXAMINATION	
4.3 Course Enrollment	
4.4 DORMITORY CHECK-IN PROCEDURES (APPLICABLE TO APPROVED DORMITORIES))13
4.5 IN-PERSON REGISTRATION	
4.6 CLASS COMMENCEMENT	
V. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES	
5.1 UNABLE TO GRADUATE ON TIME	
5.2 TERMINATION OF ADMISSION	
VI. NOTES	
VII. ENQUIRY	



Welcome Message

WELCOME TO JOIN MUST!

Congratulations! You have been successfully admitted to Macau University of Science and Technology! Upon receipt of the acceptance result, you are suggested to read this new student handbook first to make sure you understand all related admission regulations and arrangements.

Macau University of Science and Technology is a recognized University registered in Macau. Graduation certificates will be awarded to students who have satisfied the requirements for graduation within the stipulated study period.

For any enquiries of admission, please contact the School of Graduate Studies, respective faculty/ institute or related departments. For details, please refer to the enquiry in Section 7 in this handbook.



IMPORTANT DATES

I. Confirm Admission

Step	Item	Schedule	System/location	Detail	Check
1	Check acceptance result				
2	Download acceptance documents		OAS	Page 5	
3	Confirm admission online	Before the <u>Due Date</u> printed on the "Debit Note			
4	Fill in correspondence	for First Installment of Tuition Fee''			
5	Settle tuition / dormitory fees payment		Bank	Page 6	
6	Upload payment proof		OAS	Page 7	

II. Services for New Students (If necessary)

Step	Item	Schedule	System/location	Detail	Check
1	Dormitory application	After confirming admission		Page 8	
2	Order textbooks	Refer to the latest " <u>Notice</u> about Ordering Textbooks for the first Semester"	WeMust student APP	Page 9	

III. Online Registration

Step	Item	Schedule	System/location	Detail	Check
1	Student VISA	After receipt of admission documents (Applicable for mainland students)	Immigration department	Page 11	
2	Prepare registration documents	As soon as possible		Page 12	
3	Complete the online registration	After receipt of confirmation email, deadline is 18:00pm of July 20, 2021		Dogo 12	
4	Make appointment for in- person registration	After pass the registration assessment, deadline is 18:00pm of August 4, 2021	OAS	Page 13	

IV. In-person Registration

Step	Item	Schedule	System/location	Detail	Check
1	Complete health examination	August 11~27, 2021 (Appointment needed)	University Hospital		
2	Confirm course enrollment	Late August	COES	Page 13-	
3	In-person registration	August 18~27, 2021 (Appointment needed)	MUST	14 14	
4	Class commencement for postgraduate new students	September 1, 2021	MUST		

Notes: The above schedule is subject to change; please refer to the latest announcement by the University. OAS: <u>Online Application System</u> / COES: <u>Course Online Enrollment System</u>



Admission and Registration Procedures





I. Confirm Admission

1.1 Admission result

All admission results will only be announced through the <u>Online</u> <u>Application System (OAS)</u>. Please note that MUST has no cooperation with any

Admission result will be announced thought the Online Application System (OAS), applicants should be aware of email notification, and log in to the OAS.

[「] Accepted」	It means the applicant has been accepted to admit in our postgraduate program. Accepted applicants must register in the program and major as listed in the OAS. Please note that change of program is not allowed after admission. If the accepted program/major is different from the applied program/major, that means the applicant is not qualified to admit in the original applied program/major, but has been automatically transferred to another program/major.
^Γ Rejected 」	It means the applicant is not qualified to admit in our postgraduate program and do not have the chance to be transferred to other program/major.
Studentships Thesis supervisor	The information of granting studentships will be released at the same time with the acceptance result. Students who are offered studentships have to download, print, sign and upload the "Confirmation of Studentships" to the <u>Online Application System (OAS)</u> . Original copy of the "Confirmation of <u>Studentships" has to be submitted on the date of in-person registration</u> . A portion of the admission pages will list out the name of the assigned thesis supervisor. Students should comply with the related arrangements. Students have to submit application and pay related fees if they want to change the thesis supervisor after admission. If the name of the thesis supervisor is not shown on the admission page, that means respective faculty/institute will notify students to choose their own thesis supervisor at specific time after admission.
Admission Intake	The information on admission intake will be released at the same time as the acceptance result. Admission intake is usually in September each year (fall admission), or January to February each year (spring admission). Please read carefully about the stated admission intake information.

1.2 Acceptance documents

New students are highly suggested to fully acquainted with the following documents including: "Acceptance document", "New Student Handbook", "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee", "Guideline for Health Examination", "Study Plan of the accepted program", etc.

1.3 Confirm admission

New students who fail to complete the online admission confirmation will be deemed as forfeiting their admission eligibility.

Please login to the <u>Online Application System (OAS)</u> and click the "Confirm Admission" page, download and print the "Declaration of Admission", read it carefully and sign your signature, which acknowledge that you have read and understood all the regulations of admission. Please upload the scan copy of the signed declaration to the OAS <u>before the due date of tuition payment</u>.



The original copy of the "Declaration of Admission" has to be submitted on the date of in-person registration. Please keep it properly.

1.4 Fill in Correspondence

After confirming admission, please login to the OAS and click the "Correspondence" page and fill in the latest correspondence information.

The correspondence information will become a part of student's profile; students can login to the <u>COES</u> to make amendment for any updates during study.

Only students from Mainland China will receive the original copy of the acceptance documents. Other non-local new students can login to the OAS to download the acceptance documents.

1.5 Tuition and Dormitory fees

Please login to the OAS and click the "Acceptance document" page and print the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee"¹, if students need to apply dormitory, please print the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee (Dormitory Fee Included)" ¹, students should only pay one of the Debit Note. Students have to pay the following fees before the <u>due date</u> printed on the Debit Note:

- \checkmark The first installment of tuition fee
- ✓ Caution fee²
- \checkmark Health examination fee

✓ Health care insurance premium

- ✓ Dormitory rental (Applicable for dormitory applicants)
- ✓ Dormitory rental and bed clothing fee (Applicable for dormitory applicants)

Students who do not apply for dormitory, please print the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee"

Carlo Barter anna - anna -	for an a down attempt	ad-zerm	2 mm	¥ 140
Paran reside regard warm dir's eco.	present provide a second second		28.428.45%	
If we have	244. 8 WY - They at cables			44.187
	The second second second			
···	The state of the state of the state			
	1977-2750 Aug 476 6476 4			
11.14				a far
12/2/0				
			The Lowerton Post State	
Bar	and all that the state of the state		11 - er 135 107.4.	1 51.1.17
2	> 7557-2-5 77-5"			
	Tat			
Trimber #				
	And allow the interest have been been	And 4 20 10 1	1	1 h
ad .: then all most allow	· ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL AL			-
			·	
	Man Plant and			
		100 .	faither a	- 1
	And the state is a set	and the	a service a	
11	The Sector and	Second Sec		
The second second second	** (a) (a) **	1.75		
Townles a	1.4.1.1.5.83 3-585F7.3-1-34	1.1. bite	11.5.1 Million 14	
5 Y S S C S C S C S S	822** W 2251 211 84* 7 100* 7		\$1. 7.5.00	
And Hat	***** · · ** ·	***** · ·*		
***********	-54			
in ter				
1. 21				

Students who apply for dormitory, please print the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee (Dormitory Fee Included)"

New students who fail to pay and/or upload

payment proof before the due date will be considered as giving up admission. No

retention of student admission qualification

will be made.

S. Chinesenson	14	Prices	******	61 de m Ultrage Frank
200514,550-52. 32	14 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 +	 C.Y. & PMC SP - series exception contracts of the two burnings of the two contracts of the contract of the two contracts of the two contracts of the PMC SP - series of the two contracts of the two contracts of the PMC series of the two contracts of the two contracts of the two of the two contracts of the two of two contracts of the two contracts of the two of two contracts of the two contracts of the two of two contracts of two contracts of two contracts of two of two contracts of two contracts of two contracts of two of two contracts of two contracts of two contracts of two of two contracts of two contracts of two contracts of two contracts of two of two contracts of two of two contracts of two		Ber.A
	51			112 Parat 10. 100
	17.00 44	 Alexandrow and a second second		
ten Ten Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I. Tenesta I.	Karawa Masa FRAzer with 1999 -	Henney C. B. S. M. C. M. S.		a 140 (10 but and a 2 m.
ta- (a-maka). 		Hereitsen, S. M. Sandar, S. M. S. M. Sandar, S. M. Sand	in an	a 140 (10 but and a 2 m.
tan Tanuka I. Tanu Wati Yi aharaki sufi ya	- man P Holese and the April -	Annual State of the Ann	100 100 	
ta Taronka ta Najar OʻQalat 14 albandi veti ya	nan Filmer attr Stra	 Anne and a set of the later and	100 Tel	2010 - 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010
tan Kanada I. I Sunt T. alta alta alta e pa Catal I. alta alta alta e pa Catal I. alta alta alta e pa	- man P Holese and the April -	Martin and the second secon	An of the set of the s	2010 - 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010 2010 - 2010
tan Marinaka I. Marina da Marina da Marina yan Marina da Marina da Marina yan	nan Filmer attr Stra	 Boy and we have been as a set of the set o	An of the set of the s	n a la construction de la construcción de la constr



Students should pay the total amount shown on the Debit Note³; or it will be treated as tuition fee unpaid. No unauthorized alteration is allowed. Students should read the "Important Notes" listed on the second page in the attachment of the Debit Note carefully. For the details of tuition fee, please refer the University website at: <u>Admission>Tuition Fees>Tuition Fee Table for Postgraduate</u>.

Guidelines for payment:

New students should make payment to our designated bank account⁴ before the due date by bank remittance. The information of our bank account has been listed in the attachment of the Debit Note. In the "remark" column of the **bank remittance application form**, student should write/ print legibly: <u>Name of student, application number</u> and <u>the debit note number</u>. Any illegibility of any of the above information will be treated as unpaid tuition fee that students will be considered as forfeiting their admission qualification.

Remarks:

¹ The debit note is print only and cannot be downloaded. Please print it after installing the printer program on the computer or print it as a PDF file.

² Students' caution fee will be refunded on request after registration and deduction against any outstanding penalties or fees and after they have completed the clearance/withdrawal procedures or the program of study.

³ All bank service charges should be paid by students, or related charges will be debited from student's caution fee account. All fees paid are not refundable, transferable or retainable.

⁴ If the remittance is cross-bank remittance, the processing time required will be longer, it is recommended to choose the same bank to process the remittance.

1.6 Upload payment proof

New students who have duly paid the tuition fee should upload the payment slip for verification to the "Payment Proof" page in the <u>OAS</u>. Students who pay the tuition fee through bank remittance should upload the bank remittance application form to the OAS. Students who pay the tuition fee through the bank in Macau should upload the receipt of "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee" with bank chop to the <u>OAS</u>.

Confirmation of tuition: Student's tuition fee payment status will be confirmed and updated on the <u>OAS</u> by our Accounts Office. Please login to the <u>OAS</u> and check the "Application Status" page after payment. A message of "We have received your tuition fee!" will be shown in section H, which indicates the confirmation of your payment.

Notes:

New students should read and be aware of all regulations in the latest Graduate Student Handbook. After commencement of classes, all debit notes for tuition fee during study and related notices will be sent by email or posted at related notice board. Students may also login to the <u>COES</u> for downloading and printing out the related debit note for fee payment. Students may login to <u>COES</u> for viewing their account details on caution fee.

II. Services for New Students

2.1 Dormitory

Whether students live in the University's dormitories or own rental housing should pay attention to their own safety.

To help with accommodation in Macau, the University provides <u>off-campus dormitories</u> for nonlocal new students.

Dormitory

Dormitory are off-campus, located among Macau Peninsula, Taipa and Coloane. All dormitories for postgraduate students are located in Macau Island or Taipa. Most dormitory rooms are equipped with desks, wardrobes, beds and air-conditioner, etc. Hot and cold water will be provided 24 hours.

Way of Application

- 1. Submit Online Application Students who are interested in applying for dormitory should submit an online application by logging into the OAS before the <u>due date</u> listed on the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee (Dormitory fee included)".
- 2. Dormitory fee and bed clothing fee Applicants should pay the amount listed on the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee (Dormitory fee included)". Applicants only need to pay the lowest standard of rental fee for the first installment listed on the Debit Note. Students have to pay the outstanding amount of the dormitory fee after class commencement if the allocated dormitory fee is higher than the paid dormitory fee. For details, please refer to related notices.



Dormitory Fee

The dormitory rental period for Fall entry is from September to June. If related students continue to stay in the dormitory in September of the new academic year, they need to apply to the Student Affair Office in advance. For details, please refer to the dormitory application notice issued by the Student Affairs Office. For details of the dormitory fees, please refer to the University website at: <u>Admission>Tuition Fees>Fee</u> <u>Table for Dormitory</u>. The dormitory fee differs according to the dormitory location and bathroom equipment.



Order of Allocation

Due to limited places of dormitory, spaces will be allocated by the following order, allocation will be based on the order of payment of the same batch of acceptance. For example: applicant A is accepted for the first batch and tuition fee is paid on the third day after the acceptance result released, and applicant B is accepted in the second batch and tuition fee is paid on the first day after accepted. Then the applicant B will be given priority for allocation. Order for payment of tuition fee and dormitory fees are based on the receipt of full payment date confirmed by the University's Accounts Office.



The University will notify applicants with the application results through email before in-person registration. Applicants with approved application will be arranged to check in dormitory during inperson registration period.

Notes:

- (1) If the type of the allocated dormitory differs from the applied type of the dormitory, and the student disagreed to be allocated to other type of dormitory during application and the applied type of dormitory is full, those students will not be allocated. The University will refund the paid dormitory fee and bed clothing fee approximately one month after class commencement.
- (2) If the type of the allocated dormitory differs from the applied type of the dormitory, and the student agreed to be allocated to other type of dormitory during application. Regardless of the type of the allocated type of dormitory, no withdraw from dormitory or refund of dormitory fees will be accepted after the announcement of the application results.
- (3) If students want to change the type of dormitory, they have to submit application to the Student Affairs Office after registration and pay the related administrative fees.
- (4) New students who are successfully allocated to dormitories are forbidden to exchange, transfer spaces or let others stay; If found, they will be punished according to the relevant provisions of the *Graduate Student Handbook* and the *Dormitory Guide*. The University also reserves the right to pursue relevant action.
- (5) The University will provide dormitories (specific type) for the students who granted the specific postgraduate studentships (PGS). Those new students are not required to submit dormitory application through the application system.

Applicants with rejected applications should immediately seek other accommodation before class commencement. (Note: Staying in Macau during study is highly recommended)

2.2 Order textbooks

Some of the postgraduate programs listed out a textbook list for students. The Centre for Book Publishing and Supply of MUST provide textbooks ordering service for those new students.

For details of the method of ordering textbooks, please refer to the latest "<u>Notice about Ordering</u> <u>Textbooks for the first Semester</u>".

For details of the book list, please refer to the University website at: <u>Administrative Units>MUST</u> <u>Library>Textbook Supply>Latest Books</u>.

Students who do not have a textbook list means they do no need to order textbooks.



2.3 Student group insurance

All master students (for the first two years of enrollment) and all doctorate students (for the first three years of enrollment) are required to get medical insurance coverage (including hospitalization and out-patient services) offered by specific insurance company. The annual insurance premium is already included in the "Debit Note for First Installment of Tuition Fee" and is paid together with the tuition fee.

All student insurance is enrolled at specific insurance company by the University, new students should submit the "Declaration of Enrollment of Student Group insurance" to the Students Affair Office after enrollment.

If student is being covered by other medical insurance which is applicable in Macau for both hospitalization and out-patient services, he/she can apply for exemption at the <u>Student Affairs Office</u> with the original copy and photocopy of the receipt and insurance coverage details <u>after pass the</u> <u>online registration</u>. If the student's own insurance coverage is confirmed to be valid, the remaining insurance premium will be refunded. (From the date of the approval)

Annual insurance premium is subject to adjustment by the insurance company. Whatever terms and issues related to insurance policy will be dealt with and responsible by the insurance company. For

payment after the debit note due date ("late payment"), the medical insurance coverage commencement date will thereby be postponed and will only be commenced from the following month after the confirmation of related insurance premium payment.

For the details of student group insurance, please refer to the University website at: <u>Administrative</u> <u>Units>Student Affairs Office >Student Service >Group Insurance</u>.



III. Prepare Registration

3.1 Student VISA

- (1) All non-local students must hold valid personal identification documents and must be aware that such documents must be in compliance with the Law of Macau to apply for stay permit for study purpose in Macau.
- (2) For the details of student visa for students from Mainland China, please refer to the Chinese version of this handbook.
- (3) Authorization to stay in Macau (Applicable to non-local citizens):

Type of Authorization	In accordance with the stipulation of Macau Special Administrative Region, all non-local students are required to apply at the immigration building of the Public Security Police Force for "Special Authorization to Stay" ("Student Visa") for study purpose. For details, please refer to the Residence and Stay Affairs Department website at: https://www.fsm.gov.mo/psp/eng/main.html.
Arrival Card	Non-local residents will be granted an "Arrival Card" when entering to Macau (See sample on the right). Please keep this card properly while staying in Macau and remember to apply for the "Special Authorization to Stay" for study purpose.
Application Time	Non-local students should go personally to immigration building of the Public Security Police Force to apply the "Special Authorization to Stay" before the expiration date as stated on the "Arrival Card". A testimonial issued by the University and other related documents are needed to submit during application. For details, please refer to the Stay Subdivision of the Residence and Stay Affairs Department website.
Expiry date of the "Special Authorization to Stay"	Students should be aware of the expiration date of their visa and the approved period of stay in Macau. The maximum period of the "Special Authorization to Stay" for study purpose is usually one year. Students must go personally to the Stay Subdivision of the Residence and Stay Affairs Department at the beginning of each academic year or before the expiration date of their visa for renewal during study.
! Notes	 During the period of study, if the student withdraws, defers, is being terminated study by the University or transfers to another higher education institutes, upon completion of the University's clearance procedures, the student must go to the Stay Subdivision of the Residence and Stay Affairs Department on the next government working day to cancel the student's "Special Authorization to Stay" for study purpose and apply for the ordinary "Authorization to Stay" for departure preparation. Student should leave Macau before the expiration of the ordinary "Authorization to Stay" for departure preparation letter from the University about the leaving of a student owing to any of the above reasons, his/her "Special Authorization to Stay" becomes invalid immediately. If the student continues to stay without any valid "Authorization to Stay", he/she will be considered as illegally overstaying in Macau. For graduates in Macau who already have a "Special Authorization to Stay" must follow the University to apply for a new one after class commencement.



3.2 Prepare Registration Documents

The School of Graduate Studies will send a registration email notification to the new students who have confirmed payment of tuition fee. After receiving the email notification, please log in to the <u>OAS</u> and click the "Online Registration" page and follow the instructions to upload the registration documents. Registration documents to be uploaded include: Identity documents, academic certificates and transcripts, etc.

New students from Mainland China will need to upload the previous degree qualification certification documents during registration. Please prepare in advance. (For details, please refer to the Chinese version of this handbook.)



IV. Registration

4.1 Online Registration

! Note: New students who do not apply for late registration within the time limit will be deemed to be automatically disgualified from admission.

For details and specific arrangements for online registration, the university will notify new students by email. Please pay attention to the relevant email notification.

After receiving the registration notice, new students must log in to the Online Application System <u>before 18:00pm on July 20, 2021</u>, and click the "Online Registration" page to register. Those who have not completed online registration after the deadline will be disqualified from admission.

Late Registration: New students may apply for late registration at the School of Graduate Studies if they cannot complete registration within the scheduled period due to special circumstances.

4.2 Make Appointment and complete Health Examination

All non-local new students must go to the University Hospital after arrival to Macau to complete the health examination and submit the vaccination record. The "Health Examination Report" will indicate whether students are physically fit to pursue study at the University. The health examination fee is indicated in the "Debit Note for the first installment of tuition fee", which has to be paid together with the tuition fee.

Students can login to the <u>OAS</u> to make appointment for health examination after pass the online registration. Please print out the "Health Examination Appointment Slip" after appointment made. For details, please refer to the "Guidelines for Health Examination".

4.3 Course Enrollment

! The University reserves the right to terminate a student's study when he/she fails to enroll in any courses within the designated period.

All new students are required to complete the confirmation procedures of course enrollment by logging into the "<u>Course Online Enrollment System</u>" (COES), (<u>https://coes-stud.must.edu.mo/coes/login.do</u>).

Course timetables will be sent to students through email from the respective Faculty/Institute. Students may also check the enrolled class schedule in COES.

4.4 Dormitory check-in procedures (applicable to approved dormitories)

The dormitory check-in dates for new students is late of <u>August, 2021</u>. Students who have been approved dormitory must log in to the Online Application System to make an appointment for the check-in date and time. Appointment slip, identity document and Macau Health Code must be presented to the staff on the day of check-in.



4.5 In-person Registration

All accepted applicants are not officially regarded as registered students until they have completed registration **in person** within the specified period. For registration details, please refer the following:

The in-person registration period for postgraduate new students is August 18-27, 2021.

To smoothing the registration process, all new students are required to make an appointment for inperson registration through the Online Application System (OAS) first. Students will only be permitted to enter the registration site by presenting the "Appointment Registration Slip" and identification document during registration. Please be aware of the email sent by the School of Graduate Studies.

4.6 Class Commencement

For the second semester of academic year 2021/2022, classes will commence on September 1, 2021.

The latest University Calendar and the list of Macau Public Holidays can be downloaded at the University website: <u>https://www.must.edu.mo/en/sgs/students</u>.



V. Special circumstances

5.1 Unable to Graduate on Time

All registered new students have to submit the required graduation certificate of bachelor or master degree. For students who cannot graduate before registration, the University will cancel their eligibility of admission.

Students who are unable to graduate on time can submit written application for fee refund and withdrawal to the School of Graduate Studies <u>before July 31, 2021</u> (If applications are submitted through postage, the date is counted according to the chop by the post office). Applications should be submitted with a testimonial of studying status issued by the studying school, photocopy of identification document and the proof of tuition fee payment.

Late applications will not be accepted. Please enquire at the School of Graduate Studies for details.

5.2 Termination of Admission

The University will terminate a student's eligibility for admission when he or she:

- Declare to cancel admission, or fails to complete the online registration procedures within the designated period or unable to present required documents during registration
- misconduct behavior (e.g. presented documents in which the information is different from those provided during application etc.)
- presented forgery documents
- ▶ fails to pay tuition fees and related fees within the designated period
- ▶ fails to complete his/her Health Examination Report or is found to be unfit for study in the Report
- ➢ fails to complete the in-person registration procedures
- ▶ is resolved to be ineligible for admission by the University for other reasons

All submitted documents and fees paid will not be returned, refunded or transferred to terminated students and the University reserves the right to refuse admission application from terminated students in the future.



VI. Notes

Identification documents: In accordance to the laws of Macau SAR Government, all adults must have their valid identification documents (such as I.D. card /EEP/Passport) with them at all times.

Living expenses: Students should bring enough money for their expenditures for the first six months in Macau. Living expenses (not include dormitory fees) are estimated at around HKD 40,000 assuming daily meals are taken in the campus canteen.

VII. Enquiry

University address: Macau University of Science and Technology, Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, Macau **Service Hours:** Monday to Friday, 9:00-13:00, 14:30-18:20, closed on Public Holidays

Admission / Registration enquiry - School of Graduate Studies

0

Ø

Services Counter of School of Graduate Studies, 5th floor, Block O

sgsad@must.edu.mo (Please provide your Application Number or Identity Number during enquiry) (853) 8897 2262

Tuition and other fees - Accounts Office

Room N109a, Block N

accountsnew@must.edu.mo

(853) 8897 2298

Order textbooks - Centre for Book Publishing and Supply

Room N203, Block N

cbpsadmin@must.edu.mo

(853) 8897 2012 / 8897 2359

Health examination – University Hospital

hospital_enquiry@must.edu.mo

Block H, University Hospital

(853) 8897 2688

Dormitory – Student Affairs Office

E C C

Block J, Room J108, studentdorm@must.edu.mo (853) 8897 1907



Program Enqu			<u> </u>	
Faculty	Program	Contact Phone #	Email address	
Faculty of Information	Doctor of Philosophy in Science Master of Science (Information Technology) Master of Science in Applied Mathematics and Data Science	(853) 8897 2240	fi@must.edu.mo	
Technology	Doctor of Philosophy in Advanced Networking Doctor of Philosophy in Artificial Intelligence	(853) 8897 1779	iingi_enquiry@must.edu.mo	
	Doctor of Business Administration Doctor of Philosophy in Management	(853) 8897 2162	msb_inquiry@must.edu.mo	
	Executive Master of Business Administration	(853) 8897 2033	emba@must.edu.mo	
	Master of Business Administration	-		
	Master of Public Administration	-		
School of	Master of Management Studies	-		
Business	Master of Applied Economics	-		
	Master of Science in Finance	(853) 8897 1723	msb_inquiry@must.edu.mo	
	Master of Science in Accounting Master of Charity and Philanthropy	-		
	Master of Charity and Finantiropy Management Master of Science in Business Analytics	-		
	Master of Supply Chain Management	-		
	Doctor of Philosophy in Law	(853) 8897 1995		
	Master of Laws			
	Juris Master			
Faculty of Law	Master of International Economic and Commercial Law	(853) 8897 2358	fl_md@must.edu.mo	
	Master of Laws in Criminal Justice	(833) 8877 2338		
	Master of International Arbitration			
	Master of Financial Crime and Regulation			
	Doctor of Philosophy in Chinese Medicine	-		
Faculty of Chinese Medicine	Doctor of Philosophy in Chinese Medicines Doctor of Philosophy in Integrated Chinese and Western Medicine	(853) 8897 2647	fc_md@must.edu.mo	
	Master of Traditional Chinese Medicine Master of Pharmacology in Traditional Chinese Medicine	-		
Faculty of Hospitality and	Doctor of Philosophy in Tourism Management Master of International Tourism	(853) 8897 2381/	FHTM_inquiry@must.edu.mo	
Tourism	Management Master of Hotel Management	(853) 8897 2382	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	

Program Enquiries



Faculty	Program	Contact Phone #	Email address
	Doctor of Philosophy in Communication	(853) 8897 2945	fa_inquiry@must.edu.m
	Master of Arts in Communication	(033) 0097 2943	0
	Doctor of Philosophy in Design	(853) 8807 2345	g_design@must.edu.mo
	Master of Design	(033) 0097 2343	g_design@inust.edu.ino
	Doctor of Philosophy in Fine Arts	(853) 8807 1017	g_arts@must.edu.mo
Faculty of	Master of Fine Arts	(833) 8897 1917	g_arts@must.edu.mo
Humanities and	PhD of Management in Film Industry		
Arts	Master of Management in Film Industry	(853) 8897 2973	
	Master of Film Production		af@must.edu.mo
	Doctor of Philosophy in Digital Media	(952) 9907 2212	
	Master of Fine Arts in Interactive Media	(853) 8897 2313	
	Doctor of Philosophy in Architecture	(952) 9907 2212	
	Master of Architecture	(853) 8897 3313	g_act@must.edu.mo
	Doctor of Public Health		
Faculty of Medicine	Master of Public Health	(853) 8897 2415	fmd_inquiry@must.edu.
Medicille	Master of Nursing		mo
School of Pharmacy	Doctor of Philosophy in Pharmacy	(853) 8897 2181	sp@must.edu.mo
	PhD in Teaching Chinese as a Foreign Language		
University International	Doctor of Philosophy in Creative Writing	(853) 8897 2976	uic_enquiry@must.edu.
College	Master of Teaching Chinese as a Foreign Language	(655) 6657 2570	то
	Master of Arts in Foreign Language Studies		
Institute for	Doctor of Philosophy in International Relations		
Social and Cultural Research	Doctor of Philosophy in History	(853) 8897 2124	iscr@must.edu.mo
Space Science	Doctor of Philosophy in Earth and Planetary Sciences		
Institute	Master of Earth and Planetary Sciences	(853) 8897 2065	ssipub@must.edu.mo
	Master of Space Big Data Analytics		
Macau Environmental Research Institute	Master of Environmental Science and Management	(853) 8897 1758	meri_enquiry@must.edu. mo
Macau Institute of Systems	Doctor of Philosophy in Intelligent Science and Systems	(853) 8897 1758	mise_enquiry@must.edu .mo
Engineering	Master of Science in Intelligent Technology		
The Institute for Sustainable Development	Doctor of Philosophy in Urban and Regional Economics	(853) 8897 1972	isd@must.edu.mo

XThis English version is for reference purpose only. In case of discrepancies between

the English and Chinese version, the Chinese version shall apply and prevail. \times

